

Management of diarrhoea in patients with stable ulcerative colitis with low FODMAP diet, amitriptyline, ondansetron or loperamide: the MODULATE RCT

Lauren A Moreau,^{1*} Alexander Charles Ford,² Matthew James Brookes,³ Sandra Graca,¹ Elspeth Guthrie,⁴ Suzanne Hartley,⁵ Lesley Houghton,⁶ Karen Kemp,⁷ Nicholas A Kennedy,⁸ Yvonne McKenzie,⁹ Delia Muir,¹ Pei Loo Ow,¹ Christopher Probert,¹⁰ Emma Pryde,¹¹ Christopher Taylor,¹ Thomas A Willis,¹ Alexandra Wright-Hughes¹ and Amanda J Farrin¹

¹Clinical Trials Research Unit, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK
²Leeds Institute of Medical Research at St James's, Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, Leeds, UK
³The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust, Wolverhampton, UK
⁴Leeds Institute of Health Sciences, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK
⁵NHS England, Leeds, UK
⁶Division of Gastroenterology and Surgical Sciences, Leeds Institute of Medical Research at St James's, University of Leeds, Leeds, Leeds, UK
⁷Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust, Manchester, UK
⁸Royal Devon University Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, UK/University of Exeter, Exeter, UK
⁹Digestible Nutrition, UK/Nuffield Health, Oxford, UK
¹⁰Institute of Systems, Molecular and Integrative Biology, University of Liverpool, Liverpool, UK
¹¹Patient and Public Engagement, UK/Crohn's and Colitis UK Research Champion, Leeds, UK

*Corresponding author I.a.moreau@leeds.ac.uk

Published March 2025 DOI: 10.3310/GHFE4871

Plain language summary

Management of diarrhoea in patients with stable ulcerative colitis with low FODMAP diet, amitriptyline, ondansetron or loperamide: the MODULATE RCT

Health Technology Assessment 2025 DOI: 10.3310/GHFE4871

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

Moreau LA, Ford AC, Brookes MJ, Graca S, Guthrie E, Hartley S, et al. Management of diarrhoea in patients with stable ulcerative colitis with low FODMAP diet, amitriptyline, ondansetron or loperamide: the MODULATE RCT [published online ahead of print March 12 2025]. Health Technol Assess 2025. https://doi.org/10.3310/GHFE4871

Plain language summary

Ulcerative colitis is a long-term condition, and about one in five people with ulcerative colitis report ongoing diarrhoea. This also causes discomfort and distress, reducing people's quality of life, and impacting on their psychological health and mood.

This is similar to people living with irritable bowel syndrome, who often experience diarrhoea. In irritable bowel syndrome, a diet low in poorly absorbed sugars [known as fermentable oligo-, di-, and mono-saccharides and polyols (FODMAPs)] improves diarrhoea, because some FODMAPs increase small intestinal water content. Drugs like ondansetron (an antisickness drug), amitriptyline (an antidepressant drug) or loperamide (an antidiarrhoeal drug) can also be effective in irritable bowel syndrome with diarrhoea. People aged over 18 years with stable ulcerative colitis who have diarrhoea were eligible to take part.

All participants were provided with dietary advice. People were also given one of a low FODMAP diet, ondansetron, amitriptyline, loperamide, or nothing additional. A computer randomly decided who got which one. People were asked to have treatment for 6 months, in addition to their doctor's usual treatment for ulcerative colitis. People were followed up at 8 weeks and 6 months.

Benefits of taking part may have included improvement in symptoms and quality of life, including mood, fewer hospital visits and better-informed decisions regarding the management of diarrhoea in patients with stable ulcerative colitis.

Risks were the side effects associated with the drugs (although these were thought to be at a reduced rate due to the low doses used).

MODULATE opened to recruitment in December 2021 and closed in January 2023. The team tried to make the trial more convenient for participants to take part by having a remote pathway where all trial activities could be done at home with the support of a researcher on the phone. A second redesign of the trial was planned in an effort to make the trial less burdensome for trial sites and participants. However, this second stage was not implemented. While the trial was open, 17 people were screened, and one person was randomised.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the trial struggled to recruit enough participants, and it was decided to close the trial.